
Procurement Board  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 13 October 2021 

 
TIME:  10.00 am 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meetings 
held on 22nd September and 29th September  

 

(Pages 1 - 10) 

4   Matters arising  

 

 

5   Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

5a Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 
Contract Award - Manufacture and Installation of RHS Brown Tourist 
Signs on the Motorway Network  

 

(Pages 11 - 20) 

5b Request for Approval - Contract Extension - Provision of Enforcement 

Services and Request for Approval to Initiate a Competitive Tender 
Process for the Provision of Enforcement Services  
 

(Pages 21 - 30) 

6   Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

7   Date and time of next meeting  
 

10:00am on Wednesday 27th October in the Salford Suite, Civic 

Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316 
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



 

Advisor 



Procurement Board Meeting Held in the Civic Centre, Chorley Road, 

Swinton, M27 5DA 

22nd September 2021 

Meeting commenced at 10:11am 

Meeting ended at 11:09am 

Present in Person 

City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillor John Merry 

In Attendance In Person 

Carol Eddleston Democratic Services 

In Attendance via MS Teams 

 

Chris Conway  Category Manager 

Lauren Fairey  Integrated Commissioning Manager 

Chris Hesketh  Head of Financial Management 

Anthony Hilton  Head of Strategic Procurement 

Sam Mansfield  Public Health Strategic Manager 

Rhys Morris  Senior Engineer 

Tracy Squirrel  Assistant Building Liaison Officer 

Jess Ta’ati  Integrated Commissioning Manager 

Simon Telford  Principal Consultant 

Paul Walsh  Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning 

 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Hinds, Kelly and Youd.  

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 1 st September 2021 

RESOLVED, THAT: in the absence of the members who had been present at the meeting on 1st 
September, approval of the minutes be deferred to the next meeting. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



4. Decision Items – Part 1 – Open to the Public 

4(a) Request for Approval – Exception to Contractual Standing Orders – Contract 

Extension – Healthwatch Salford 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking an exception to 

Contractual Standing Orders to allow the contract for Healthwatch to be extended for two years , 
with an option to extend for an additional 12 months, and to go out to market. 

Under the Health & Social Care Act 2012 Local Authorities were under a duty to commission a local 

Healthwatch organisation for their area. Healthwatch Salford was established in March 2015 and an 

award of a contract to them was approved by an exception report to Procurement Board on 24 
September 2015.  

The proposed extension would provide stability to the current provider to enable them to continue 

the great work they were doing and allow time for system recovery following the pandemic and to 

inform any changes required to the service model. It would also allow time for the Integrated Care 

System (ICS) to be implemented and factored into the development of a new service specification 
and model.  

RESOLVED, THAT:  

1) a two year extension with an optional extension of a further 12 months for the provision of 

the Healthwatch service be awarded to Healthwatch Salford, with an estimated average per 

annum value of £166,520, and 

2) approval be granted to commence a detailed procurement exercise with a view to having a 

new contract in place by the end of March 2025. 
 

4(b) Request for Approval – Exception to Contractual Standing Orders – Contract Award 

– Salford Advocacy Hub and Request for Approval to Go Out to Competition. 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking approval to award a 12 

months extension to the contract for Salford Advocacy Hub and to go out to competition for a new 

contract for the delivery of the Salford Advocacy Hub from 1st April 2023. 

Under the Care Act 2014 Local Authorities had a duty to commission an independent Advocacy 

service. Mind in Salford were awarded the Salford Advocacy Hub contract following a tender 

process. The Salford Advocacy Hub was performing well and was widely considered a good se rvice. 

Performance was monitored on a quarterly basis. The provider was exceeding commissioned 

capacity in some areas, for example Independent Mental Capacity Advocacy (IMCA). This was well 

managed through the flexibility of the service as advocates were trained to provide different types 
of advocacy, and this helped Mind to manage capacity across advocacy. 

An extension was being sought for a number of reasons, including the introduction of the Liberty 

Protection Safeguards (LPS) in place of the previous Deprivation of Liberty Protection Safeguards 

(DOLS). The new arrangements were expected to come into effect in April 2022 and the government 

was currently developing a Code of Practice which would ultimately enable the council to estimate 

the number of advocacy hours that might be required. Extending the contract should allow time to 

get an understanding of the implications of the new arrangements prior to commencing a re -
tendering process. 

Page 2



Mind in Salford was a well-regarded provider and the Advocacy Hub was considered to be a good 
service. Arrangements would be made to bring performance information to a Lead Member Briefing. 

RESOLVED, THAT: 

1) an exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved for the following reasons: best 

value to the Council and to meet the Council’s legal obligations in relation to a special 

health or social care contract; 

2) a 12 months’ extension of the contract for Salford Advocacy Hub be awarded to Mind in 

Salford with an estimated average per annum value of £391,000.00, and 

3) authority be granted for the Salford Advocacy Hub to be procured in accordance with 
Contractual Standing Orders through an open tender process.  

4(c) Request for Approval to Go Out to Competition - Age Well and Request for 

Approval – Contract Extension – Tea and Tech 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking approval to go out to 

competition for an Age Well service to support older adults in Salford and to extend the Tech and 

Tea (Age Friendly Salford) contact for a period of six  months in order to align it with other with a 
number of other services. 

There were currently a number of services commissioned between the city council and Salford 

Clinical Commissioning Group to support older adults residing in the city. Due to the nature of these 

contracts being similar and the need for future provision to mirror existing visions for older adults 

across Salford, Integrated Commissioning and Public Health would undertake a joint tendering 

exercise to establish an Age Well offer for the city, with the new model intended to commence from 

1st October 2022. 

The intention was to procure services via two lots: Lot 1 – Population Health – to support older 

people to live healthy and active lives, and Lot 2 – Early Intervention – a one stop shop for Salford’s 

older population to enable older people and carers to get the best outcomes. 

It was acknowledged that the providers of these services were small organisations but it was 

considered that the proposals would allow choice, without disenfranchising any providers. 

Discussions had taken place with existing providers about the proposed approach.  

Tech and Tea was originally commissioned to deliver a programme to enhance the digital skills of 

older people with up to 500 older people per year completing the Tech and Tea Programme. During 

the COVID-19 pandemic services had been broadened to meet the changing needs of older people 

and reduce isolation. Tech and Tea courses were still offered, at reduced numbers to meet COVID 

secure requirements and, in addition, daily activities were hosted online as well as weekly walking 

groups to support people to regain confidence to go out. 

RESOLVED, THAT:  

(1) a six months’ extension to the contract for Tech & Tea (Age Friendly Salford) with Third 

Sector Consortium sub-contracted to Inspiring Communities Together be approved, at an 

estimated average per annum cost of £72,500, and 

(2) authority be granted to procure an Age Well Service in accordance with Contract Procedure 

Rules through an open tender. 

Page 3



4(d) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Timber Reinstatement Works at Buile Hill 

Mansion 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award a 
contract for timber reinstatement works at Buile Hill Mansion. 

A detailed condition survey had been completed to inform the extent of the restoration works and a 

timber specialist engaged to assess the extent of fungal decay evident from the condition survey. 

Decay by dry rot had been identified in the basement, ground and first floor areas. 

Recommendations for the treatment and remedial works to eradicate the fungus had been prepared 

and incorporated into a tender document for enabling works to prevent further water ingress and 

deterioration of the building fabric. This would include the removal and replacement of ti mber 

lintels, floor joists and ceiling joists, repairs to the roofs and rainwater goods to protect the property 

whilst further designs were being developed for the whole of the building and external access.  

Members of the board commended the Social Value offer outlined in the report and the City Mayor 
was particularly keen to visit once the contractors were on site. 

RESOLVED, THAT: approval be granted to award a contract for timber reinstatement works (rot) at 

Buile Hill Mansion to Schofield and Sons Ltd with a contract value of £176,508.00 (full project cost of 

£210,000.00 including surveys, professional fees and associated additional costs).  

 

4(e) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Gore Street Highway Improvements 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking approval to award a 

contract for Gore Street Highway Improvements. 

The scheme would upgrade a 175m stretch of Gore Street, between the junctions with Trinity Way 

and New Bailey Street, to reflect its role as a link in the walking and cycling network, a key route to 

Salford Central Station and a gateway into central Salford. The scheme would also support the 

opening up of railway arches to create new pedestrian routes through what was currently a 

significant barrier. The Gore Street scheme sought to complement neighbouring regeneration and 

support the transformation of Gore Street into an attractive and welcoming environment for local 
residents, workers and those accessing Salford Central. 

Members of the board welcomed the contractor’s commitment to social value and social impact and 

it was confirmed that the successful bidder Rosgal Limited was accredited with the Living Wage 
Foundation.  

[A review of the evaluation process after the meeting identified errors in the template formulas 

which calculated the quality scores. As a result, the evaluation was re -run and the scores updated to 

reflect the revised outcomes. 

 

Page 4



Name of Bidder 
(Anonymised) 

% Quality 
score* 
Max 60 

% Price score 
Max 40% 

%Overall Score 
100% 

Ranking  

Provider A 43.00% 25.68% 68.68% 4 

Provider B 48.00% 29.95% 77.95% 2 

Provider C 38.00% 39.25% 77.25% 3 

Rosgal Limited 40.50% 40.00% 80.50% 1 

The highest scoring bidder in both evaluations was Provider D (Rosgal  Limited) and therefore the 

contractor recommended for award was consistent with the report and 22nd September 
presentation to Procurement Board.] 

RESOLVED, THAT, subject to Greater Manchester Combined Authority approval of Full Business Case 

and Delivery Agreement: 

(1) Approval be granted for a contract for the Gore Street Highway Improvements Works to be 

awarded to Rosgal Limited with a value of £234,923.85, and 

(2) A risk allocation totalling £67,000 be approved, for scheme construction costs, which can be 
drawn down on by the Project Team.  

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Procurement Board Meeting Held in the Civic Centre, Chorley Road, 

Swinton, MS27 5DA 

29th September 2021 

Meeting commenced at 10:00am 

Meeting ended at 10:41am 

Present in Person 
Councillors Bill Hinds (in the chair), Tracy Kelly and Jack Youd. 

In Attendance in Person 
Carol Eddleston Democratic Services 

In Attendance via MS Teams 

Alison Burnett  Senior Manager Joint Commissioning 

Helen Dugdale  Public Health Strategy Manager 

Chris Hesketh  Head of Financial Management 

Anthony Hilton  Head of Strategic Procurement 

Gillian Mclauchlan Deputy Director of Public Health 

May Moonan  Assistant Director Healthcare Public Health 

Matt Wall  Technical and Architecture Lead, DDAT 

 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillor John 
Merry. 

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of Proceedings 

The minutes of the meeting held on 1st September were approved as a correct record. 

4. Matters Arising 

There were no matters arising. 

5. Decision Items – Part 1 – Open to the Public 

 

Page 7



5(a) Request for Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders – 

Commissioning Extension – Mandated Sexual and Reproductive Health Services for 

Salford and Bolton 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Public Health seeking approval for an 

exception to Contractual Standing Orders to allow a nine months’ extension to the commissioning of 
mandated Sexual and Reproductive Health Services for Bolton and Salford.  

Although resource was now being allocated back to ‘normal’ activity, the timescales required to 

tender and implement a service by 1st July 2022 meant that a comprehensive needs assessment, 

meaningful stakeholder engagement and market testing, and thorough revision of contract 

specifications would not be achievable. This presented a significant risk of a low-quality tender and 

contracting a new service which did not effectively meet the current and future needs of residents. 

Extending the contract by a further 9 months would provide the time to be able to achieve a suitably 

thorough tender process. In addition, non-NHS providers could have an advantage over NHS 

providers in their ability to participate fully within the procurement process, as NHS providers had 

been responding to the COVID-19 as well as increased demand which had resulted from the 
pandemic. 

The source of funding was the Integrated Fund, with these services specifically being funded through 

the Public Health grant. Just as commissioners currently worked with Salford CCG, they would work 
with the GM Integrated Care System going forward. 

RESOLVED, THAT: 

(1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved as the ongoing provision of the 

services is required so urgently as not to permit compliance with the requirements of 

competition, and 

(2) A nine months’ extension to the commissioning of Sexual and Reproductive Health Services 

from Bolton NHS Foundation Trust be approved, with a per annum estimated average value 

of £1,794,437 (total including Bolton £3,224,828). 

05(b) Request for Approval to go out to Tender – Campus Digital Infrastructure Upgrade 

– [MY]Work 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director of Service Reform seeking approval to 

run a competitive tendering exercise for four lots to complement and support the Civic Centre 
campus accommodation and implementation of the [MY]Work principles and programme. 

It was confirmed that Lot 4 Smart Campus (Door/Security/IOT Sensoring) was required because the 

current door system was ageing and needed to be replaced. The other lots would facilitate the safe 

return to the office of more people who wanted to be more socially interactive with colleagues and 
be part of a team in the building. 

The Digital Inclusion Programme continued to inform decision making and was key to ensuring that 

no one in the city was left behind or digitally excluded and that services continued to be delivered in 
different ways to enable everyone to access and consume the services they needed.  

Page 8



Work was ongoing to build relationships with local companies and to encourage them to (bid for) 

work with the council.  Officers would continue to do their utmost to engage with local suppliers and 

to outline the council’s expectations in relation to the Foundation Living Wage and the City Mayor’s 
Employment Standards Charter. 

RESOLVED, THAT: approval be granted to commence a competitive tendering exercise for the 

following: 

- Lot 1 – [MY]Work Audio visual  

- Lot 2 – Network Infrastructure Upgrade  

- Lot 3 – [MY]Work Booking Application – Hardware  

- Lot 4 – Smart Campus (Door/Security/IOT Sensoring 

 

6. Exclusion of the Public  

RESOLVED: THAT, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 

from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involved the likely 

disclosure of exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.  

 

7. Decision Items – Part 2 – Closed to the Public 
 

7(a) Request for Approval – Exception to Contractual Standing Orders – Contract Award 

– Skills and Work Programme 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking approval for an 

exception to Contractual Standing Orders to allow a number of contracts within the Skills and Work 

Programme to be extended for a period of 12 months. 

Members of the board acknowledged the value and importance of this programme to the people of 
Salford.  

RESOLVED, THAT:  

(1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved for reasons of best value to the 

Council, and 

(2) The selected contracts within the Skills and Work Programme be extended for a period of 12 

months from 1st April 2022, subject to the confirmation of final budgets for 2022/23. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
13 October 2021  

 

TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a 
contract for the manufacture and installation of RHS brown tourist signs on the 

motorway network

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

That the Procurement Board approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
as permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reason(s) highlighted in the 
table below and the award of the Contract for the manufacture and installation of 
RHS brown tourist signs on the motorway network as detailed in the table below: 

Detail required Answers 
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project 
RHS brown tourist signs on the motorway 

network 

Name of Successful Contractor  Walker Sign Erectors Ltd 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME 

Contract Value (£) £ 257,534.86 

Contract Duration  3 months 

Contract Start Date  20/10/2021 

Contract End Date  28/01/2022 

Optional Extension Period 1 months 

Optional Extension Period 2 months 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5a



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

Detail required Answers 
Who will approve each Extension 

Period? Choose an item. 

Contact Officer (Name & number)  

Lead Service Group Choose an item. 

Reason for CSO Exception: The goods / 
services / works are only obtainable 
from one provider and there is no other 
provider available to allow genuine 
competition 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: The 
execution of works or the supply of 
goods or services is controlled by a 
statutory body 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Delivers 
Best Value to the Council 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Special 
education, health or social care 
contracts, if it is considered in the 
Council’s best interests and to meet the 
Council’s obligations under relevant 
legislation 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: The 
execution of works or the supply of 
goods and services is required so 
urgently as not to permit compliance 
with the requirements of competition 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Security 
works where the publication of 
documents or details in the tendering 
process could prejudice the security of 
SCC and Salford residents 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: 
Procurements made through, or on 
behalf of, any consortium, local 
authority, statutory or similar body, 
provided that tenders or quotations are 
invited and contracts placed in 
accordance with national or EU 
legislation. 

Tick if it applies  

Funding Source Choose an item. 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

 

 

EC: Committed to sign up to the Charter  

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer  

 

Page 12



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
to approve the award of a contract for manufacture and installation of the RHS brown 
tourist signs on the motorway network to Walker Sign Erectors Ltd at a value of 

£257,534.86.  
 

The reasons why an exception is requested are as follows: 
 

 Walker Signs are the only provider of this service that we are aware of that have 

the relevant National Highways passports and Sector Scheme Approvals to be 
able to access and work on the motorway network; 

 Appointing Walker Signs offers best value to the council as demonstrated by a 
cost comparison of recent procurement of similar signs on the local highway 

network and by virtue of the fact that Walker Signs would very likely be the 
installation company if another contractor was appointed as the principal 
contractor; and  

 The timing of these works is urgent, with the temporary RHS directional signs 
needing to be removed by no later than 26 November 2021 and a tender 

exercise does not permit the City Council to comply with these timescales. 
Having no directional signs on the motorway for a period of at least two months 
would increase the risk of driver confusion and late lane changes, thereby 

increasing the risk of accidents occurring. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

N/a 

 

KEY DECISION:  

No. 

 

DETAILS:   

1.0 Background 

 
1.1 RHS Garden Bridgewater opened in Salford on 18 May 2021. RHS Garden 

Bridgewater is anticipated to yield the following benefits: 
 

 Significantly raise the profile of Salford within the regional, national and 

specialist media; 

Page 13



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

 Anticipated to attract c 700,000 visitors per annum by 2031, making it 
one of the largest tourist attractions in the North West;   

 Create around 326 direct and indirect jobs by 2031, of which a minimum 
of 30% are anticipated to be Salford residents; 

 Generate an additional £11.5m of GVA per annum by 2031; 

 Over 180 volunteers on site per year by 2031; 

 20 apprentices / studentships per year by 2031. 
 

1.2 Under the terms of the legal agreements with the RHS the City Council was 
obligated to deliver a series of off-site highway improvements, including: 

 

 A new signal-controlled access junction into the garden; 

 Modification works to the roundabouts at Junction 13; 

 Brown tourist signage on the local and motorway network. 
 

1.3 In addition to the above the City Council has secured £3.8m from the Mayor’s 
Challenge Fund (MCF) to build a 6.2kn walking and cycling route that links 
Boothstown, Walkden and Worsley to the RHS site, called the ‘RHS Greenway’ . 

 
1.4 All off-site highway works are now complete with the exception of c 15% of the 

‘RHS Greenway’ and the motorway signage. 
 

2.0 Motorway signage 
 

2.1 Working in partnership with the RHS the City Council has identified 11 brown 

tourist signs that are required on the motorway network, on the M60, M61, M62 
and M602. A plan of these signs is attached at Annex A. These signs will 
provide forward visibility to motorists as to how to get to the RHS and will assist 

drivers to get into position in a safe, orderly manner to minimise the risk of any 
late lane changes. 

 
2.2 The City Council has been working with National Highways for over 18 months 

now on securing agreement to the signs, which is much longer than we 

anticipated it would take to secure agreement. When it became clear that the 
permanent signs would not be in place ahead of the RHS opening on 18 May 

2021, the City Council secured agreement to place temporary direction signs 
on the motorway network. These were placed out on the motorway on 26 May 
2021 and can only be up for a maximum of 6 months, meaning they need to be 

removed by no later than 26 November 2021. A delegated exception to 
contractual standing orders was approved for Walker Sign Erectors Ltd to install 
the temporary signs on the following basis: 

 

 They are the only signage contractor in the north west that we are aware 

of that has the necessary National Highways passports and Sector 
Scheme approvals to access the motorway network, which was required 

for both survey and installation work; and  

 Due to the urgency of installing the temporary signs. 
 

Page 14



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

2.3 The permanent signs package has now been agreed with National Highways 
and a formal legal agreement is in the process of being executed by both 

parties. 
 

3.0 Why an exception is requested 

 
3.1 An exception and waiver to the Council’s contractual standing orders is 

requested in relation to the procurement of the RHS brown tourist signs on the 
motorway network. 

 
3.2  A quotation has been supplied by Walker Signs to manufacture and install the 

signs for a price of £257,534.86. This is broken down as follows: 

 
Cost element Cost 

  

Traffic management  £102,392.78 

Vegetation clearance £32,571.42 

Sign, post and foundations £122,570.66 
Total £257,534.86 

 
3.3 Walker Signs are the only provider of this service that we are aware of 

that have the relevant National Highways passports and Sector Scheme 
Approvals to be able to access and work on the motorway network. Firstly, 

we approached a number of local companies including SCC Highways Depot 
and Argyle’s based in Little Hulton. However, none of these companies hold the  

relevant National Highways Passports required to work on the motorway 
network. We also undertook an internet search to see if there are other Salford  
or North West signage companies that may be able to fulfil our requirement but 

could not find any. Casting the net further afield only two other UK 
manufacturers and installers of motorway signage appear on an internet 

search, R & M Lighting and PWS Signs. However, R & M Lighting do not have 
any case studies to demonstrate that they have installed signs on the motorway 
network – all their case studies are signage projects on local authority roads. R 

& M Lighting also do not have the relevant Sector Scheme approvals to work 
on the motorway network, so would have to sub-contract installation works out 

in any case. Similarly, PWS Signs are based in Ireland and do not have the 
relevant Sector Scheme approvals to work on the motorway in England – they 
sub-contract their installation works out to Walker Signs. Following the above 

we   approached National Highways for a list of companies who are able to 
install signs on the motorway network. The only supplier they were able to 

provide to us was Walker Signs. Outside of the big Highways England principal 
contractors, Walker Signs appear to be one of the few smaller companies that 
hold the relevant National Highways Passports and Sector Scheme approvals 

and seem to be the sole supplier of motorway signage for all of National 
Highways principal contractors, having installed all of the signage for the M60 

Smart Motorway works, the M62 Smart Motorway works, the M4 and M5 Smart 
Motorway, a number of other Smart Motorway schemes down south and are 
currently installing signage for the M6 Smart Motorways scheme. 

 

Page 15



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

3.4 Appointing Walker Signs offers best value to the council. As discussed 

under paragraph 3.3, a handful of other companies offer manufacture and 

installation of motorway signs. However, they do not hold the necessary 
National Highways passports and / or Sector Scheme approvals to be able to 

access and work on the motorway network. Installation therefore would need to 
be sub-contracted out. PWS Signs sub-contract all their installation works out 
to Walker Signs in any case. R & M Lighting do not evidence any history or case 

studies of having delivered a motorway signage scheme. Undertaking an open 
market tender exercise therefore is unlikely to yield a more competitive price 

than that quoted by Walker Signs as Walker Signs would likely be undertaking 
the installation works in any case. PWS Signs and R & M Lighting would also 
charge a management and overhead fee which would likely increase the cost 

of the tender. As a cost comparison the City Council recently procured Wigan 
Council to install a similar sign and passive post system on the East Lancashire 

Road (A580) in Wigan. The cost of this was £5,500 for the sign, posts and 
foundation. The signs Walker Signs are installing on the motorway are 
approximately twice the size of the sign on the A580 and are £11,142 per sign 

for the sign, posts and foundation. This demonstrates that Walker Signs are 
quoting a similar price on a pro rata basis as Wigan Council quoted and this is 

therefore a competitive quotation. The layout and extent of traffic management 
and vegetation clearance has been dictated to us by National Highways and 
Walker Signs have contracted these elements of work through their own 

approved contractor lists.  
 
3.5  The timing of these works is urgent. As discussed previously the permanent 

signs need to be installed by 26 November 2021 at the latest. If they are not 
installed by 26 November, there will be a period where there are no directional 

signs on the motorway network for the RHS. This would increase the risk of 
driver confusion, late lane changes and therefore increase the safety risk to 

drivers. It may also lead to negative publicity for the RHS and the City Council. 
The City Council has had very limited control over the process for approval of 
these signs and as mentioned previously did not expect the process to take this 

long. Subject to appointment of Walker Signs by Procurement Board on 13 
October 2021, all the permanent signs can be installed by 26 November 2021. 

Should a tender exercise be required, and allowing for 8 weeks for tendering 
and approvals, a contractor would not be able to start on site until at least 6 
December 2021 and the signs would not be fully installed until at least mid-

January 2022 – two months after the temporary signs are required to be 
removed. As the works would also take place either side of the Christmas 

holiday period, the City Council would also incur prelims over the Christmas 
period whilst the contractor is on shutdown.     

 

3.6 Due to the contractor working nights, working on the motorway network with all 
the necessary permits and accreditations required and due to the short length 

of the contract, there is very limited scope to deliver social value from this 
contract. Walker Signs employ 25 people and are based in Winsford, Cheshire 
and the majority of posts are paid above the Living Wage, though the company 

is not an accredited Living Wage employer. Walker Signs also provide all staff 
with Construction Skills Certification Scheme (CSCS) training which provides 

NVQ level qualifications in all aspects of their work.  

Page 16



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

 
4.0 Budget 

 
4.1 A maximum budget of £257,534.86 is available for this commission. This 

quotation has been provided under an NEC Option A contract and is a priced 
activity schedule. This means that this a capped price proposal and should for 
instance installation take longer than anticipated, this is a risk the contractor 

bears at his own expense.  
  

4.2 The project is being 100% funded via the Salford City Council capital 
programme and is being drawn down from the budget approved for the RHS 
scheme by full Council in December 2015. 

 
5.0 Programme 

 
5.1 Subject to appointment of Walker Signs by Procurement Board on 13 October 

2021, all the permanent signs will be installed by 26 November 2021 in time for 

the temporary signs being removed. The contract will run until the end of 
January 2022 to account for any snagging and remedial works identified by 

SCC / National Highways and for any recommendations coming out of the post-
scheme safety audit. 

 

5.2 Should a tender exercise be required the permanent signs would be installed 
by mid-January 2022 at the earliest and the contract would run until mid-March 

2022 to account for any snagging and remedial works identified by SCC / 
National Highways and for any recommendations coming out of the post-
scheme safety audit. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 Salford 2025, a Modern Global City. 

 Transport in Salford 2025. 

 The Great Eight. 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-   

All signs to be installed under this contract are compliant with all national highways 
and signage regulations, which requires them to be DDA compliant. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

Medium – if the permanent signs are not installed by 26 November 2021 there is a 

danger that without any directional signage the risk of driver confusion and late lane 
changes will increase, thereby increasing the risk of accidents occurring. The City 

Council is potentially open to legal challenge by undertaking a direct award. However, 
the risk of a challenge is considered to be low given the lack of competitors who are 

Page 17



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

able to deliver this contract with the required National Highways Passports and Sector 
Scheme approvals.  

 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

SCC capital programme budget 2021-22. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by the Shared Legal Service 

Contact officer and telephone number: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 
 

Date provided: 27.09.21 
 
Comments: Ordinarily when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, 

services or the execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply 
with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the provisions of its own 

Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best 
and Social value. In addition, the PCR require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner, 

failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge.  
 

In exceptional circumstances the Council may dispense with strict compliance of its 
CSO’s, and the report sets out the reasons for the request for the exception, in 
accordance with paragraph 3.1 of CSO’s. Whilst exceptions may be authorised by an 

approval from the Procurement Board, there is still a risk of challenge from aggrieved 
providers if the usual tender process has not been followed on the basis that it ought 

to have been advertised and put out to competition. 
 
The risk of challenge increases with the value and duration of a proposed contract 

being awarded. The report sets out the reasons for the need to enter this contract, the 
benefits and value to the Council, and also states the reasons for the request for 

exception, such as the urgency required in appointing Walker Signs  and the specialist 
nature of the services.  
 

The Council is also under a best value duty to carry out its functions economically, 
efficiently and effectively with the objective to achieve value for money in all public 

procurement. The Council has considered the circumstances in this matter and 
concluded that the recommendation to award the contract to Walker Signs is 
considered to be of least risk and of most benefit to the Council. 

 
Also Regulation 32 of PCR allows a direct award of a contract without publication (a 

direct award) “(b)  where the works, supplies or services can be supplied only by a 
particular economic operator …. (because) competition is absent for technical 
reasons” if it could be shown that NPS are a unique provider , or (c)  insofar as is 

strictly necessary where, for reasons of extreme urgency brought about by events 
unforeseeable by the contracting authority, the time limits for the open or restricted 

procedures or competitive procedures with negotiation cannot be complied with”, so if 

Page 18



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

a genuinely urgent situation, this could be argued.

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by the Finance Team 

Contact officer and telephone number: Alex Archer 778 0498 

 
Date provided: 28/09/2021 
 

Comments: There is sufficient funding within the Place 2021/22 capital programme 
to fund the cost of the signs detailed in this report. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Corporate Procurement Team 

Contact officer and telephone number: Heather Stanton, Category Manager 

 
Date provided: 28th September,2021 

 
Comments: This exception to standing orders for the installation of signs on the 
motorway network via Walker Sign Erectors appears to be the only contractor who has 

the National Highways passports and approvals to complete this project.  Based on 
the value a tendering process would have been completed but the timescales required 

indicate that this is not possible. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: 

None. 
 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: 

None. 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

None. 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Paul Gill, Senior Development Manager 

TELEPHONE NUMER: 07595 846687

 

Page 19



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  

All signs are to be installed on National Highways land on the motorway network and 

this contract doesn’t specifically impact any wards within Salford. 

 
 

Page 20



Extension of Enforcement Contract – Procurement Board 13-09-21 

Part 1 – Open to the Public 

 
ITEM NO. 

 
REPORT OF 

The Strategic Director for Place 
TO 

Procurement Board 
ON 

13th October 2021 

 

TITLE:  Approval for an extension to the contract for the provision of Enforcement 

services and approval to initiate a competitive tender process for the provision of 
Enforcement Services

RECOMMENDATION: 

 That the Procurement Board: 

(1) approves the extension of the contract for the provision of Enforcement services 
as detailed in the table below: 

 

Detail required Answers 

Contract Reference S1013 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project Provision of Enforcement Services 

Name of Contractor  NSL Services Ltd 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate 
Procurement) 

Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate 
Procurement) 

Non-SME 

 

Value of Contract Extension 
£977,271 Per Annum (estimated average) 

Existing Contract Term 01/04/2018 to 31/03/2022 

Extension Period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023 

Contact Officer (Name & 
number) Andy Devine 07717431738 

Lead Service Group 

 
Place 

Funding Source Revenue Budget 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter  

Page 21

Agenda Item 5b



Extension of Enforcement Contract – Procurement Board 13-09-21 

Detail required Answers 
EC: Committed to sign the 

Charter  

EC: Accredited Living Wage 
Employer  

 
(2) approves the initiation of a competitive tender process for the provision of 

Enforcement Services 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

A tender process for the provision of this service was awarded to one contractor, NSL 
Parking Services Ltd in April 2018 for a period of three years following an OJEU 
tendering process. 

 
When the contract was originally awarded, it was made clear that the initial term would 

be subject to a potential extension of two years and the option to extend for the final 
12 month period within the agreement is now being properly exercised, the final period 
being from 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023. 

 
Due to the uncertainty and supressed market in terms of Civil Enforcement operations 

during the period affected by Covid the market is only just starting to recover with the 
easing of lockdown restrictions. This report therefore recommends that approval be 
given to the final year extension of the existing contract and that authorisation be given 

to start the procurement exercise. This will see the delivery of Enforcement Services 
opened out to the tender process, giving ample time to complete a robust procurement 
exercise. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

Procurement Board report to award and approve a contract to appoint the winning 
contractor following a competitive tender process for the provision of Enforcement 
Services – presented to Procurement Board on 24th January 2018. 

Procurement Board report to approve a one year extension to the existing contract for 
the provision of Enforcement Services – presented to Procurement Board on 3rd March 

2021.

KEY DECISION:  Yes 

 

 

 

Page 22



Extension of Enforcement Contract – Procurement Board 13-09-21 

DETAILS:   

1.      Background 

 
1.1     Approval to instigate the open tender process was granted at Procurement 

Board on 29th November 2017 following the presentation of a briefing note 
relating to the provision of Enforcement Services across Salford and 
Trafford. 

 
1.2    It is not viable to cease future parking enforcement as traffic movement 

through the Authorities would be severely disrupted by indiscriminate parking 
and there might also be road safety implications as a result, therefore we 
must continue to deliver the service. 

1.3     It was proposed that a joint contract between Salford and Trafford Councils 
would be mutually beneficial. Approval was therefore granted to allow 

Trafford and Salford Councils to initiate the open tender process for the 
procurement of a new Enforcement Services Contract. 

 

1.4  NSL Services Ltd were the successful company and approval was granted 
at Procurement Board on 24th January 2018 to award the contract for on and 

off-street enforcement in April 2018 initially for three years with an option to 
extend for a further two years on an annual basis. 

 

1.5      A further report was presented to Procurement Board on 3rd March 2021 
and approval was granted for the first of the two year extension period which 

expires on 31st March 2022. 
 
 

2.          Current Situation 

 

2.1  As the initial contract extension is due to expire on the 31st March 2022, a 
decision must now be made be as to the way forward in terms of service 
delivery of this function. This report requests approval for an additional 

extension, which is within the existing contract, to 31st March 2023.  
 

2.2    The Council adopted Civil Parking Enforcement powers in 2001 taking that 
function from the Police and once that process has been undertaken, it is not 
possible to hand it back. 

 
2.3   The option to cease future parking enforcement is not viable as traffic 

movement through the City would be severely disrupted by indiscriminate 
parking.  

 

2.4     It is therefore necessary to consider future arrangements, after March 2023 
which at this stage would be either to consider bringing the service in house 

or re-tender.  
 
2.5 A benchmarking exercise has taken place to determine the implications of 

bringing Enforcement Services back in-house and the comparison has been 

Page 23



Extension of Enforcement Contract – Procurement Board 13-09-21 

made against the arrangement at Sheffield City Council who currently run 
their Enforcement Service in-house. 

 
2.6 The table below provides a comparison using figures taken from reports 

presented freely on the internet – with figures rounded up to reflect those 
anticipated in 2022. 

 
Salford Staffing  

 

Costs (£) 

Ops Manager x1@ £47,500 
 

47,500 

Senior CEO x4 @ £36,876 

 

147,504 

Civil enforcement Officer x 22 @ £31,179 
 

685,938 

Total Salary Costs 880,942 

Salford enforcement operation is approx. 40% 

the size of that delivered in Sheffield and so 
the following Operational costs have been 

derived using that assumption 
 

 

Premises (if housed in SCC accommodation 
then negligible cost) however there may not 

be suitable accommodation currently 
available and so rented alternatives may be 

sought which would increase these costs 
significantly 

 

3,000 (based on SCC 
accommodation) 

Transport Costs 53,133 

 

Supplies & Service 
 

273,311 

Total Operational Costs 

 

329,444 

Grand Total 
 

1,210,386 

 

 
 

Comparison of costs using Parking Income from 2019/20 (Pre-Covid) = 
£1,252,000 

 
NSL anticipated Costs factored for 2021/22 = £888,740 surplus of £363,260 

 

In-house Costs 2021/22 = £1,210,386 surplus of £41,614 

 

 
2.7 In revenue terms the Council would receive £321,646 less revenue if it 

decided to bring the Service in-house. 

Page 24



Extension of Enforcement Contract – Procurement Board 13-09-21 

 
2.8 There are also additional Operational concerns with bringing the Service in-

house relating to – 
 

 Staff retention, subject to Job Evaluation outcomes – if the staff and 
overheads are more, there will be a larger reduction in revenue. 
 

 Managing staff absence and competence through SCC processes could 
leave the service shorthanded and unable to backfill in the interim, resulting 

in lower PCN’s issued. 
 

 Outsourcing to an Enforcement Contractor allows Salford to draw on the 
flexibility this provides. The majority of Enforcement organisations also work 
in partnership with other Councils across the North West and they have the 

ability to draw resources from these areas to assist Salford in times of need. 
The current provider for example operates in 9 of the 10 GM authorities and 

bringing the service in-house would result in losing the flexibility that offers 
to draw resources from those other GM authorities when demand is high. 

 

2.9 As a result of this benchmarking exercise combined with the additional 
Operational concerns the decision to bring in-house has not been pursued 

and the recommendation to open Enforcement Services up to the 
Competitive Tender exercise is being put forward in this report. 

 

 
3. Performance 

 
3.1   The current contractor NSL was awarded the contract following a robust 

competitive tendering exercise, which resulted in them submitting the best 

bid both in terms of quality and cost.  
 

3.2     Due to the nature of this type of service, it can take some time for any newly 
appointed contractor to settle into what is for them, a new project. 

 

3.3     This can be compounded by staff not transferring under TUPE arrangements 
to a new contractor as was the case with the current contract. 

 
3.4     It has been historically difficult to recruit and retain staff for this type of work 

in Salford however NSL have worked hard to create an environment where 

staff feel supported and valued by senior officers. In addition it was important 
that staff receive the Salford Real Living Wage and all of these factors have 

resulted in a marked improvement in their staff retention rates. 
 
3.5 In order to show support for their team members and commitment to Salford 

City Council NSL have purchased and rolled out the operation of Body Cam 
technology. This has assisted colleagues when they are on their beats and 

it has been demonstrated that the presence of the equipment has helped in 
reducing the threat level when enforcing. 

 

Page 25



Extension of Enforcement Contract – Procurement Board 13-09-21 

3.6      In terms of revenue the income from Penalty Charge Notices is used to fund 
all contractor costs. Before March 2020 the level of income being generated 

by parking enforcement had risen year on year. The impact of the Covid 19 
pandemic had reduced the initial level of enforcement to minimal cover and 

staff were deployed to assist in other vital areas such as marshalling Covid 
test centres, and recycling centres. 

 

3.7 Bearing this in mind the income from parking enforcement in 2020/2021 was 
therefore reduced totalling £822,283 against a cost of £870,461. In the 

previous years the revenue from enforcement covered the cost of the 
Enforcement contract and made a surplus which has been increasing year 
on year. As lockdown eases then indications from the last 3-4 months are 

that revenues are increasing to a level greater than pre-Covid. 
 

3.8 Having regard to the Environmental Enforcement NSL have continued to 
provide a good standard of support to the authority. Their performance levels 
have remained in line with the contract requirement, and in normal times (i.e. 

non Covid Lockdown) the amount of littering Fixed Penalty Notices served, 
offset the costs for this contract element of service delivery. In terms of 

2020/2021 the income was £41,470 against a cost of £86,710. The quality of 
the detail they provide is of a level that meets our legal requirements. The 
communication interaction, between Salford and NSL, provides flexibility in 

service delivery, that enables the authority to dictate their area of deployment 
to meet customer and service demand, which NSL willingly agree to 

undertake on Salford City Council's behalf. 
 

3.9   This report has been presented some 5 months before the expiry of the 

current arrangement with the recommendation that approval be given to the 
final year of the contract and that authorisation be given to start the 

procurement exercise which will see the delivery of Enforcement Services be 
opened out to the tender process which gives ample time to complete a 
robust procurement exercise and we will give consideration to continuing the 

partnering arrangement with Trafford at the same time. 
 

4.  Social Value 

 
4.1 An update on NSL contribution to Social Value begins with their agreement 

to recruit locally with their team currently consisting of 100% who live in the 
Greater Manchester area of which 31% are Salford residents, In addition 

their staff are on a flexible working arrangement to cater for personal or 
domestic issues that may arise. 100% of promotions are internal with 3 
colleagues promoted to Senior Civil Enforcement Officers who will complete 

several courses to further develop their skills. 

4.2 NSL also attend local job fairs organised by Salford Council when looking to 

recruit and continue to promote employment opportunities for 
underrepresented groups with the Growth Company for residents living in 
the Salford area – several candidates have already been through this 

system. 

Page 26



Extension of Enforcement Contract – Procurement Board 13-09-21 

4.3 NSL and Salford Council worked together to ensure that all NSL staff are 
now paid the Salford Living Wage. 

4.4 NSL have an Employee Assistance Scheme - Access to the Employee 
Assistance Scheme is available throughout the contract and is displayed on 

noticeboards, this gives employees access to telephone counselling support, 
personal legal advice and financial information, health advice across a range 
of medical and wellbeing issues and access to an online portal for further 

advice and support. This service is confidential via a third party and is 
available 24/7, 365 days a year. 

4.5 In terms of training opportunities one employee has completed a Level 5 
apprenticeship in Management with CMI and three employees have 
completed cycle proficiency training and are deployed on cycles. Staff are 

also undergoing updated Diversity Training (as part of their bi-annual 
requirement). In addition they are required to complete other on-line training 

requirements (such as GDPR, vulnerability inclusion and social value, cyber 
security, MAYBO conflict training, safeguarding awareness, fire safety, H&S 
environmental awareness, anti-bribery and corruption). 

4.6 In terms of local sponsorship NSL have agreed to contribute £1,000 to a local 
community group chosen by the City Mayor’s office. They have also 

maintained their sponsorship of a local football team Barr Hill Under 18s who 
will be playing in Division 1 of the Bolton & Bury League this season. 

4.7 NSL have committed to 2 managers and up to 5 colleagues supporting a 

Council initiative in the community.  

4.8 As mentioned earlier during the Covid lockdown NSL supported activities 

undertaken by Salford City Council – manning the NHS testing site at the AJ 
Bell stadium, providing traffic control measures for 3 waste centres and 
patrolling local parks to encourage members of the public to comply with 

social distancing regulations. 

4.9 Currently NSL are spending with local businesses where possible including 

catering, office supplies and local garages. Most recent year spend between 
April 2019 – March 2020 was £12,000. 

4.10 In terms of promoting environmental sustainability NSL currently deploy up 

to 3 cyclists daily reducing CO2 emissions and have 3 members of staff 
taking advantage of the cycle to work scheme. 

4.11 In their drive to reduce fuel consumption NSL provide CO2 fleet emission 
data targeting an annual 5% reduction across the business. The CO2 value 
in 2016 was 139.8, the CO2 value in 2017 123.7 (9% reduction) the CO2 

value in 2018 116.2 (6% reduction), the CO2 value in 2019 118.4 (2.5% 
increase) and most recently in 2020 a 117.7 (1% reduction). 

 

 

Page 27



Extension of Enforcement Contract – Procurement Board 13-09-21 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Local Transport Plan 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Civil Parking Enforcement 

has been undertaken in Salford since 2001 and can only be undertaken by the Local 
Authority once the powers have been adopted. A great deal of emphasis has been 
placed on the social value associated with such a contract. Contractors were asked to 

demonstrate how they will impact positively in this respect by supporting local 
employment and local supply chains.  This in turn aids the growth and regeneration of 

the City. No sections of the community, particularly those with protected characteristics 
will be adversely affected by the award of this contract. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  High - as any interruption of parking enforcement, could 
have a severe adverse effect on traffic movement in the City. 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: £888,740 for parking enforcement services to be paid from 
the Parking Services Revenue Budget and £88,531 from the Environmental 

Enforcement revenue budget. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 

When commissioning goods, services or works the Council must comply with the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders 

(CSO’s) failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. In that 
regard, the Enforcement Services described in the report were procured in 2018 for a 

3 year period with the option to extend for up to 2 further years.     
 
It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being 

extended (or modified providing any modification does not affect the overall nature of 
the contract), where the original agreement makes provision for the extension. CSO’s 

also set out circumstances such as these where contract extensions may be made. 
  
When the contract was originally awarded, it was made clear that the initial term would 

be subject to a potential extension of two years, hence any risk that any extension 
granted could be subject to realistic challenge by an aggrieved provider, on the basis 

that it ought to have been put out again to tender and advertised in accordance with 
PCR and CSO’s, is extremely low, and the option to extend for the final 12 month 
period within the agreement is now being properly exercised. 

 
Also in accordance with CSO’s, where provision is made within an existing contract 

for an extension to the term, and the value is over £150,000 approval should be made 
by Procurement Board. 
 

Page 28



Extension of Enforcement Contract – Procurement Board 13-09-21 

Once approved the extension will commit the Council to the period outlined in the 
report. 

 
The report also requests Procurement Board approves the initiation of a compliant, 

competitive tender process for the provision of Enforcement Services to be undertaken 
during the final extension of the current contract. Undertaking a compliant tender 
exercise will  give some comfort to the Council in ensuring that value for money is 

being obtained and tested, with open competition maintained, and at the same time 
ensure that the risk of challenge to the appointment of a contractor is minimal and that 

any challenge, should it materialise, is unlikely to be successful. 
 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Janet Cross, Finance Manager 0161 
793 2858. 

The contract cost will be met from the Parking Services and Environmental 
Enforcement revenue budget. 
 

Cost Centre D0584 5751. 
 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: The Corporate Procurement Team 

In 2017 the Council went out to tender for the services for Parking Enforcement 

through the OJEU and the Northwest Portal. The original award was in April 2018 
made for a period of three years with the option to extend for 24 months renewed 

annually. 

The Council is exercising its option to extend the contract for the final 12 months to 
31st March 2023, this is compliant with the Procurement Contract Regulations and the 

Contractual Standing Orders. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Michael Hemingway, Principal 

Officer Climate Change Tel 0161 793 3209 

NSL provide CO2 fleet emission data successfully targeting an annual 5% reduction 

across the business, mainly through reducing fuel consumption.  They also promote 
environmental sustainability by deploying 3 cyclists daily reducing CO2 emissions.  
 

 OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

 

Page 29



Extension of Enforcement Contract – Procurement Board 13-09-21 

CONTACT OFFICER: Andy Devine                                   TEL. NO. 07717431738

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All wards 

 

  

Page 30


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meetings held on 22nd September and 29th September
	03 - PB Mins 29-09-21

	5a Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Contract Award - Manufacture and Installation of RHS Brown Tourist Signs on the Motorway Network
	5b Request for Approval - Contract Extension - Provision of Enforcement Services and Request for Approval to Initiate a Competitive Tender Process for the Provision of Enforcement Services

